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GipeoN CoBs DAYS FEATURES A

FREe HisTorIcAL Tour oF CorBETT' s GLEN

AND THE PATRICK CoRBETT HOME ON ALLEN’' s CREEK

—1:30 pm
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Picnicking in the glen in earlier days and the Patrick Corbett house
HIGHLIGHTS OF THE 3™ ANNUAL CELEBRATION OF

GipeoN Coss DAys, JUNE 23 AND 24

ideon Cobb Days kicks off with aHistory
GLuncheon and program entitled

“Brighton’sHistoric Natural Treasure:
Corbett’'sGlen,” presented by Andrew Wheatcraft
on Friday, June 23 at 11:45 am at Mario’s Via
Abruzzi, 2740 MonroeAve. Wheatcraft, past presi-
dent of the Genesee Land Trust, will explore the
history of the glen from Indian days forward and
the land trust’s involvement with the Town of
Brightonin making theglen, aspot of natural beauty,
into atown park. Reservationsarelimited; call 244-
0402 or 271-5531 before June 17 for information.
Members of the Genesee Land Trust will also par-
ticipatein the Saturday celebration inthe glen.

On Saturday, June 24, 9:30 am to 1:30 pum, fes-
tivities will move to Corbett’s Glen itself. Come
and bring all generations of your family to partici-
pateinthefun.

The Patrick Corbett housewill be openfor visi-
tors. Read the article beginning on page 3 by Deb
Bower, apresent owner of the house. Some of the
highlightsthat you will seeinclude:

* A171footlong, hand-cut stonetunnel

* An 1880's Queen Anne farmhouse with
Gothic appointments

* Period cast iron lighting fixtures

e Antique musical instruments consisting of
hand-cranked barrel operated instruments,
apipeorgan, player pianosand music boxes

e AWaurlitzer band organ

» Hand cranked kitchen utensils

* Origina floor plan dating from the turn-of-
the-century

A scavenger hunt is planned for children of all
ages. Visitors will search for a “pastoral seating
area,” the"postcardfalls,” the depression and mill
race remains, the girdled tree, the foundation and
cement dlab, thewooden bridge built asaBoy Scout
project, the cattail marsh, and the “ Alluvia Fan,”
commonly referred to as“the meadow.”

“Fever Pitch,” a barbershop quartet, will en-
tertain from the steps of the Corbett house and
throughout the glen on that day.

Light refreshmentswill be available.

Park your carsin thelot at the Linden Medical
Campus, Building 10, 30 Hagen Drive off Linden
Avenue/Rt. 441 between 9:30 am and 1 pm. Shuttles
will take you to and from Corbett’s Glen for all of
thefestivities.

Come and enjoy an unprecedented emersionin
Brighton’s history. But first, read Leo Dodd’s ar-
ticleabout Brighton’s“Death Valley” on page 2.
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BRIGHTON' s DEATH VALLEY

Compiled by Leo Dodd

Today s Corbett’s Glen—site of fun and
frolic—was once a very dangerous place.
For 47 years, 1823-1870, gun powder, also
known as black powder, was produced there. In
1823, Hubbard and Parsons announced: “Having
erected a powder and tin manufactory, will keep
constantly on hand the above articles of the first
quality where merchants and peddlers can be fur-
nished by large and small quantities, on the most
reasonable terms.” Thefollowing is an account of
the only industry outside of Corbett’sfarm that was
established inthe glen. The glen wasanatural hol-
low with 18 acres of flat land and running water,
located a safe four miles from Rochester when it
was selected by Marshfield Parsons as the loca-
tion of the Parsons Powder Mill.

A quarter of acentury later, the next chapter in
our story of long-past horrorsrelies on the memo-
ries of one Lieutenant Colonel Joseph Herbert
Cogswell, age 20 in 1848.

In the summer of 1848 while | wastrying
to learn to set type in Benton and Fisher’s
printing officein ReynoldsArcade, Roches-
ter, | had achanceto ride home one Saturday
evening with my uncle, Isaac Moore. After
we passed Goodman Street, thenthecity line,
and were abreast the John Culver Farm, a
large portion of the lower sky almost dead
ahead was lighted up by three great illumi-
nations in quick succession, brilliant and
beautiful; then camethe sound of dull or sub-
dued explosions. The story told itself. The
Parsons’ Powder Mill had blown up. | think
there were no fatalities at the time and that
the millswere not rebuilt. For the benefit of
many whose memory does not go back of
1850, | would state these Mills were in a
gorge a quarter of a mile below the Allen
Creek Village, with no dwellings near enough
to be affected by explosions.

The spectacular fireworks did not include any
fatalities, so the horrors were postponed.
Cogswell’smemory wasincorrect, however, inthat
the Parsons’ Powder Mill was rebuilt and an Au-

These two brass tumbling balls were found on the
glen property by Jeff Vincent. They were used in
the powder grinding process and possibly wit-
nessed the last explosion. Their size can be com-
pared to the nickel shown.

gust newspaper stated that “the proprietor isready
tofurnish thevillainous saltpeter to all customers.”

In 1849 the glen property was sold by Marshfield
Parsonsto William Stoneburner and becameknown
as Stoneburner’s Glen. The powder mills contin-
ued production as the Genesee Powder Mills, op-
erated by J. Conolly, Fairbanks & Cromrie.

Fast forward to 1854 when the Rochester Daily
Democrat reported

On Thursday evening at 9 o’ clock, the
powder mills of the Genesee Powder Co. ...
at Allen’s Creek, somefive miles east of the
city, exploded with a shock that sensibly af-
fected all the buildings in the city, and was
felt at adistance of over twelvemiles. A good
deal of surprise and some alarm was caused
by the concussion. The cause of such an ex-
plosion cannot be known as the disaster
leaves no traces of itsorigin. It is supposed
that the cylinder mill first blew up, with its
charge of 50 kegs of powder, and fired the
grinding mill adjoining and connected with
it by shafts, which at once burst, and caused
the second detonation which succeeded the
first aimost instantaneously. The cylinders
were of wood, about four feet in diameter,
filled with small copper balls, and constantly

(Continued on page 7)



AN OWNER’ s VIEW OF THE PATRICK CORBETT HOUSE
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By Deb Bower
ittle did we know when we purchased our
L house in Corbetts Glen that we would be
walking back through the pages of time to
uncover chaptersof history from the horseshoesdug
up inthe gardensto the breezes that waft down the
hallsof our home on ahot summer’sday. Our house,
known to Historic Brighton as the Patrick Corbett
house, was built in the early 1880s utilizing the
discarded timbers from New York Central’s 1853
wooden trestle. When the trestle was filled in to
form an earthen embankment, trestle timberswere
removed to allow for the construction of an arched,
171 foot long, 30 foot high, hand-cut stone tunnel
that allows for passage of Allen’s Creek and our
driveway beneath the railroad’s tracks. Those re-
moved and discarded timbers are what hold our
house up.

Asone enters Corbetts Glen through the tunnel
off of Glen Road, a large farmhouse can be seen
peering through the tunnel. What might be easily
noticeable right off is how the placement of the

houseis offset from theimposing placement of the
tunnel. Rather than honing in on the tunnel for aes-
thetic reasons as would be done in today’s world,
in 1881 the house was built offset from the north-
south, east-west axis to alow for maximizing the
prevailing westerly winds for natural ventilation
of the house. Aswell, our house was built with the
southern and eastern walls being festooned with
windowswhilethe northern and western wallsare
not. By building our housein such amanner, during
the cold winter months when the sunislow on the
horizon, the sun streams through the windows
warming theinterior. During the hot summer months
when the sunishigh in the sky over the house, the
house interior remains dark and cool. A high, 12-
foot peaked attic and full-length, deep cellar also
aidsin both ventilating and insulating our home.
Going up the walk towards the inviting wrap-
around porch, you will noticetwo front doors. Many
Victorian-period houses have two front doors; one
for everyday use and one for special occasions or
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AN OWNER’ s VIEW OF THE PATRICK CORBETT HOUSE
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for business use where visitors would not need to
enter into the living space of the home, but would
enter directly into theformal parlor to conduct their
business, whether negotiating a financial deal or
wooing thefarmer’s daughter. In our house another
usefor the extrafront door wasto facilitate getting
acoffininto the house without having to negotiate
cornersand narrow hallways. Family memberswho
have died were commonly laid out in the formal
parlor. The Corbett family alwaysreferred to their
formal parlor asthe“death room.” Inthisfront par-
lor the original wallpaper isevident abovethe pic-
ture rail. An ornately designed pressed cork bor-
der material still survives along the top of the par-
lor walls. | have always been intrigued by the fact
that, in our house, the common entryway door hasa
cast iron doorbell installed in the door, where as
thebusinessor forma doorway did not have adoor-
bell. A doorbell was not necessary on this door
because the family would awaysknow when aspe-
cial visitor was to arrive, so the visitor did not
need to announce hisor her arrival by using adoor-
bell. Today, people go to the most readily avail-
able door and that being the formal entryway, we

Patr- ick Corbett on the porch of his house

have had to install a doorbell. The doorbell we
installed isfrom the late 1800's and isa porcelain
doorknob that isconnected to abell within the house
by awire that passes through the doorway mold-
ing. Pulling the doorknob away from the house
causesthe bell to ring on the interior.

Onceinside, all of the doors, moldings and the
formal staircase are from American chestnut trees
that came from the property surrounding the house.
Luckily, the woodwork in the house was never
painted and so the detailsarewell defined and pre-
served to bejust asthey werewhen Patrick Corbett
moved in circa 1890. The house is an example of
late 19" century vernacular farmhouse with Queen
Anne style details including gothic appointments
such as turned urns topping the newel-posts both
inside and outside the house. All of the floors are
made of soft fir except for the original kitchen floor
that is made of hardwood maple.

Theoriginal kitchen wasthemost lived inroom
of the house, hence the mapleflooring. Therewere
five doorways leading from the kitchen that pro-
vided easy accessto al partsof the house and yard.
Therewas awalk-in pantry and facility for alarge
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cast iron wood-cooking stove. Gray water was
plumbed into the kitchen from alarge cistern lo-
cated in the basement. The cistern collected rain-
water from thelarge roof using Yankee guttersthat
shunted the water through the roof and down into
the cistern. In about 1910, the Corbetts added a
new kitchen onto the rear of the house and created
aformal dining room of the original kitchen by add-
ing an oriel bay window to the exterior of the house.
The new kitchen had abathroom, awalk-in pantry
and a laundry area at the rear of the kitchen that
was covered in wainscoting from floor to ceiling.
The wainscoting was obtained from old railroad

cars, most probably from railroad cars that had
plummeted over the embankment and landed inthe
Corbett’s front yard during atrain wreck in Octo-
ber of 1918.

Our house never had the benefit from natural
gasasit wasbuilt out in the country and being rather
secluded was well away from the newer develop-
ments. If you wereto visit our house you would see
authentic 1880’ s ornate cast iron kerosene chande-
liersintheformal parlor andintheoriginal kitchen
room that iswhat we use as our living room. While
complete and unobtrusively e ectrified, these chan-

deliers are not original to the house. The Corbetts
never had any wall or ceiling fixturesinstalled. It
seems they must have relied upon tabletop lamps
and lanternsfor lighting. As such, when the house
was electrified, there were few outlets placed in
each of theroomsand it remains achallengetoday
to plug in everything that we might want to plugin.

There are five bedrooms; one grandparents’
bedroom on the 1% floor and four bedrooms up-
stairsall of which have walk-in closetsthat for the
turn-of-the-century clothing storage was morethan
adequate as peopledid not have theamount of cloth-
ing that we havetoday. Patrick Corbett and hiswife

raised eight children in our house. Thereisamore
ornatefront staircase that we almost never useand
a smaller, plain rear staircase that we almost ex-
clusively useto go up and downstairs. | canimag-
ine the Corbett family having the same living pat-
ternsaswedo. Thereisone exception, though. For
us the small area above the front stairway is used
for storage whereas, before el ectrification, thearea
above the front staircase would have had a desk
and chair located for the purpose of writing letters
and other correspondence because that is where
thelast vestiges of sunlight fall withinthe house.

There were no indoor toilet facilities and the
family used a four-holer privy which was located
outside a few paces away from the back kitchen
door and mudroom. Today we have two bathrooms
and have constructed a glass solarium where there
was once amudroom for changing one’s footwear
and clothing when coming in from the barn and
fields.

Patrick Corbett was a dirt farmer and made a
living by raising vegetablesto be sold at thefarmer’s
market in downtown Rochester. Patrick wasknown
for growing celery that he was able to do because
of the wetlands located within the glen combined
with his mastery at creating an irrigation system
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using water fromAllen’s Creek. Inthe daysbefore
refrigeration celery was a luxury commodity.
Patrick had work horses and carriage horses from
which we periodicaly dig up horseshoes in our
gardens.

Living in a home that was designed as a mod-
ern, efficient for-the-times of the 1880'shome, itis
interesting to think about how afamily lived within
the samewallsover 100 yearsago; what their daily
liveswerelike and how they managed to enjoy and

Postcard view of the Corbett house through the tunnel

thrive in the same living space as we are able to
livetoday. | have beentold that our house took four
yearsto build; thefoundation having been laid and
left to settle for two years before the rest of the
structure was built so that everything would be
plum.

| think the extraeffort really paid off, becauseif
you were to come and see our house today, you
would see that the ridgepoleis aslevel today asit
was when it was built over 125 years ago.

| u o
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Patrick Corbett and the 1

918 train wreck from which he obtained wainscoting



BRIGHTON' s DEATH VALLEY
(Continued from page 2)
revolving, at the rate of fifiteen or sixteen
revolutions per minute. In these the powder
was ground, and afterwards passed to another
mill for grinding. The men had left the mills—
which are carried by water-power and kept
inmotion day and night— at about 6 0’ clock,
and there was no person in or near them at
thetime of the eruption. Consequently, no one
was killed or injured. The percussion shook
the housesin thevicinity, some about aquar-
ter of amiledistant, but aside from the break-
ing of glass and disturbance of equanimity,
no damage resulted to others than the mill
owners. The railroad bridge, some 700 feet
distant was not hurt. A building 12 rods dis-
tant, belonging to the company, and used for
preparing charcoal, was somewhat shattered
by the blast, the locks were torn from the
doors and the rafters split. A storehouse, in
which some 5,000 kegswere deposited, took
fire and burned, with its contents. The light
caused an alarm of fire which drew out the

firemen.

Thisisthefourthtimein twenty yearsthat
these powder works have exploded. ... The
mills now destroyed were new. Some four
years ago a man named Ross was killed by
the blowing up of the works. It is deemed
impossible to construct them to be proof
against such accidents, and hence they are
not permitted near where people live or
where property can be destroyed by their ex-
plosion.”

known of the cause of the calamity asall who
were in the mills were instantly killed. The
shock wasvery great shattering thewindows
in surrounding buildings, though doing no
material damage beyond thelimitsof thepre-
mises occupied by the powder makers.

The powder millswere owned by E. Gil-
bert & Co.... They had five buildings but a
few rods apart—two of theseweremills, one
acorning house another a packing house and
thelast adrying house. All the buildingswere
destroyed except one mill, which was run-
ning with cylindersfilled only two hundred
feet from one of the buildingsthat exploded.
Thefirst explosion took placein the corning
house, asadriver statesthat wasgoing to the
millsand was only some 40 rodsdistant when
the explosion occurred. The quantity of pow-
der destroyed isestimated at from 300 to 400
kegs of 25 pounds each.

The bodies of the unfortunate men were
scatteredin al directions, some of them were
tornin piecesand all denuded and blackened
so they could scarcely beidentified. Theun-
fortunate men bore an excellent character for
industry and sobriety, and some of them had
accumulated considerable property. The fu-
neralswill take place in Brighton this after-
noon.

This is the fourth time explosions have
taken placeat thesemillswithin ahalf adozen
years and it is only a few months since the

Worse was yet to come. An 1855 newspaper
account details the horror in the Glen’s worst re-
corded disaster

last one occurred, but it fortunately involved
no loss of life.

About twenty minutes past four o’ clock
PMm yesterday, the city was shaken by three
successive explosions a few seconds apart.
It was soon ascertained that the powder mills
on Allen’s Creek in the Town of Brighton,
four miles from the city, had blown up, in-
volvingthelossof fivelives.... Someof these
men leave families. Of course nothing is

These mills were making about 1500
pounds of powder per day for which the de-
mand is quite active. We presume the enter-
prising proprietors will rebuild the mills at
once. Their loss by this disaster is estimated
at $1,500.

Coroner Pullisheld aninquest... Thejury
returned thefollowing verdict..

That the said five men cameto their death
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by explosion, the employee or owners hav-
ing men employed and about the mills and
works not being men of experience and not
proper for to work about the said powder
millsand that such might be the cause of the
explosion.

Thefinal explosion camein 1870. There were
no known fatalities but the mills were closed
forever.

AsLeo Dodd writes, “The natural beauty of
today’sglenishighly contrasted with yesterday’s
horror in explosive disasters.”
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HistoriIcC BRIGHTON HONORED BY
BRrRiGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

-

The Historic Brighton board and member-
ship were delighted to receive the Organi-
zation Community Service Award for 2006
presented by the Brighton Chamber of Commerce
at the chamber’sannua awardsluncheon on May
18.

Receiving individual awards at the same lun-
cheon were Mary Jo Lanphear, Town of Brighton
Historian, and Arlene Wright for her work with the
Brighton Historic Preservation Commission.

HistoriCc BRIGHTON MISSION:
Celébrating the town’s history and
Educating our community about
Brighton's past



